UEE
Legislative Council

Ref : CB4/BC/11/20 LC Paper No. CB(4)1783/20-21
(These minutes have been seen
by the Administration)

Bills Committee on National Flag and National Emblem
(Amendment) Bill 2021

Minutes of the first meeting
held on Friday, 27 August 2021, at 4:00 pm
in Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex

Members - Hon CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, JP (Chairman)
present Dr Hon Priscilla LEUNG Mei-fun, SBS, JP
Hon Mrs Regina IP LAU Suk-yee, GBM, GBS, JP
Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP
Hon Steven HO Chun-yin, BBS, JP
Hon YIU Si-wing, SBS
Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP
Hon KWOK Wai-keung, JP
Hon Christopher CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP
Hon Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, GBS, JP
Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, GBS, MH, JP
Hon Holden CHOW Ho-ding
Hon SHIU Ka-fai, JP
Hon YUNG Hoi-yan, JP
Hon LUK Chung-hung, JP
Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH, JP
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP

Member : Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, SBS, JP

absent

Public Officers : Mr Erick TSANG Kwok-wai, IDSM, JP
attending Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs

Miss Katharine CHOI Man-yee
Deputy Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs (2)



Clerk in
attendance

Staff in
attendance

-2

Ms Cordelia LAM Wai-ki
Principal Assistant Secretary (Constitutional & Mainland
Affairs)7

Miss Jamie TSE Yik-yan
Assistant Secretary (Constitutional & Mainland Affairs)7A

Mr Lawrence PENG Si-yun
Deputy Law Draftsman Il
Department of Justice

Mr Gary LI Ming-fung
Senior Government Counsel
Department of Justice

Ms Teresa CHAN Mo-ngan
Deputy Secretary for Education (Special Duties)

Mr Harry TSANG Chin-kwong
Director of Protocol
Protocol Division of the Administration Wing

Ms Joanne MAK
Chief Council Secretary (4) 7

Miss Rachel DAI
Assistant Legal Adviser 2

Mr Dennis HO
Senior Council Secretary (4)7

Miss Kitty LEUNG
Council Secretary (4)7

Ms Louisa YU
Legislative Assistant (4) 7




Action

-3 -

l. Election of Chairman (and Deputy Chairman)

Election of Chairman

Mr CHEUNG Kwok-kwan was elected Chairman of the Bills Committee.

2. Members agreed that there was no need to elect a Deputy Chairman for the
Bills Committee.

II.  Meeting with the Administration
[File Ref.: CMAB S/F (1) to E4/1, LC Paper Nos. CB(3)864/20-21, LS110/20-
21 and CB(4)1439/20-21(01) to (03)]

3. The Bills Committee deliberated (index of proceedings attached at Annex I).
The opening speech delivered by the Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland
Affairs ("SCMA") is attached at Annex 1.

Discussion

4. The major views and concerns raised by members are set out in paragraphs 5
to 15 below.

Desecration of the national flag and national emblem

5. Members noted that clause 6 of the Bill sought to amend section 4 of the
National Flag and National Emblem Ordinance ("NFNEQO") to provide for additional
circumstances in which the national flag and national emblem must not be used or
disposed of inappropriately (e.g. a national flag or a national emblem must not be
displayed upside down, must not be displayed or used in any way that undermines
the dignity of the national flag or the national emblem, and must not be discarded at
will). SCMA explained that while the proposed new section 4 was a directional
provision that did not impose any penalties, if the elements of the offences under the
proposed new section 7 were proved (i.e. publicly and intentionally desecrating the
national flag or national emblem), an act in contravention of the proposed new
section 4 might constitute an offence under the Bill.

6. In response to members' concerns on various scenarios that might contravene
the proposed new section 4(2) under clause 6 of the Bill (e.g. unintentionally
displaying the national flag upside down or sideways), SCMA reiterated that under
the proposed new section 7(1) and 7(2), publicly and intentionally desecrating the
national flag or national emblem by burning, mutilating, scrawling on, defiling or
trampling on it or its image or in any other way, or intentionally publishing such a



Action

Admin

-4 -

desecration with intent to desecrate the national flag or national emblem, would be
a criminal offence.

7. Members also expressed concerns about tackling online offences of
desecrating behaviour in relation to the national flag and national emblem.
Mr LUK Chung-hung enquired whether behaviours of spoofing the national flag and
national emblem on the Internet, such as the act of replacing the five stars on the
national flag with five virus shapes, would contravene the proposed new section 7.
SCMA advised that it would depend on whether the relevant image resembled the
national flag so closely as to lead to the reasonable belief that the relevant image was
the national flag as pursuant to the proposed amended section 8, and whether the
elements of the offences specified in the proposed new section 7, i.e. publicly and
intentionally desecrating the national flag, were present. It would be a question of
fact and had to be assessed based on the actual circumstances of each case.

8. SCMA further advised that in dealing with the abovementioned desecrating
acts that were committed overseas, the Police would, under the existing legal
framework (e.g. through Mutual Legal Assistance Agreements), seek co-operation
and assistance from overseas law enforcement agencies as necessary.
Mr Steven HO expressed concerns as to whether law enforcement against offences
in this area committed on the Internet would involve substantial manpower and
whether the Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau had drawn up an
enforcement plan in consultation with the Security Bureau. He requested the
Administration to provide additional information in writing.

(Post-meeting note: The supplementary information provided by the
Administration [LC Paper No. CB(4)1419/20-21(01)] was tabled at the
meeting on 3 September 2021 and was issued the members on the same day.)

Education in national flag and national emblem

9. With regard to the requirement for the Secretary for Education ("SED") to
give directions for the inclusion of the national flag and national emblem in primary
and secondary education under the proposed new section 7A in clause 11 of the Bill,
members enquired about the consequences to be faced by schools for failures to
comply with the relevant directions to be given by SED. Members also enquired
whether the Administration would strengthen the training for teachers on education
in the national flag and national emblem to ensure effective teaching in this area.

10. Deputy Secretary for Education (Special Duties) ("DS(Ed)(SD)") said that
schools had the responsibility to educate students to understand and respect the
national flag and national emblem. She said that the Education Bureau ("EDB")
would keep in view the implementation of education in the national flag and national



Action

-5 -

emblem in school through daily contacts, inspections and visits.  She assured
members that EDB would follow up on irregularities identified in school operations
(including non-compliance with the directions given by SED) in a serious manner
and request the schools concerned to make rectifications through the existing
mechanism, e.g. giving verbal/written warnings or advisory letters. If individual
schools did not comply with the requirements, EDB could exercise power conferred
by relevant provisions of the Education Ordinance (Cap. 279). EDB was confident
that schools would comply with the directions to be given by SED under the
proposed new section 7A of NFNEO.

11.  On training and support for teachers, DS(Ed)(SD) said that EDB would
enhance the provision of the relevant learning and teaching resources for schools.
In this connection, a web-based resource platform "National Education One-stop
Portal" had been newly developed with a view to facilitating teachers' and students'
browsing of and access to the diversified resources relating to, among other things,
the national flag and national emblem. Furthermore, from September 2021
onwards, EDB would organize web-based seminars on national flag raising
ceremonies for teachers of kindergartens ("KGs"), primary and secondary schools.
Throughout the 2021/22 school year, training workshops would also be conducted
for teachers so as to strengthen support for schools in fostering the sense of national
identity among students through regular conduct of national flag raising ceremonies.

12. Ms YUNG Hoi-yan questioned why SED was required to give directions for
the inclusion of the national flag and national emblem only in primary and secondary
education but not in KG education as well under the proposed new section 7A(1)(a)
of NFNEO. She considered that children should receive education in the national
flag and national emblem and develop the sense of national identity from a young
age. Mr KWOK Wai-keung pointed out that education in the national flag and
national emblem should be covered in the national security education courses run by
the universities funded by the University Grants Committee.

13. DS(Ed)(SD) explained that unlike primary and secondary education, which
adopted subject-based curricula, KG education aimed at promoting comprehensive
and balanced development in children through approaches of "Real-life Themes".
Moreover, the proposed new section 7A aimed to reflect Article 21 of the amended
Law of the People's Republic of China on the National Flag ("National Flag Law")
and Article 15 of the amended Law of the People's Republic of China on the National
Emblem ("National Emblem Law"). That said, DS(Ed)(SD) advised that the KG
curriculum attached importance to children's moral development and good living
habits. Teachers should help students understand the national flag and the etiquette
of raising the national flag, as well as recognize that Hong Kong was part of the
Country, so that students would develop the sense of belonging to the Country.
DS(Ed)(SD) pointed out that EDB had been in communication with universities,



Action

Admin

Admin

-6 -

some of which had already incorporated national security education into their
curriculum. DS(Ed)(SD) added that Mr KWOK's view would be relayed to the
universities for consideration.

Recovery and disposal of the national flag and national emblem

14. Members noted that clause 5(3) of the Bill proposed to add a new section 3(3A)
to empower the Chief Executive to make stipulations in relation to the recovery and
disposal of national flags and national emblems. Principal Assistant Secretary
(Constitutional & Mainland Affairs)7 ("PAS(CMA)7") explained that the
Administration noted that in previous large-scale events, the handheld national flags
were often thrown on the ground or discarded casually after the events. To suitably
reflect Article 19 of the amended National Flag Law and Article 14 of the amended
National Emblem Law regarding the recovery and disposal of the national flags and
national emblems in the Bill, on implementation, the Administration planned to set
up designated collection points at Community Halls or Community Centres in
different Districts for event organizers and members of the public to return any
damaged, defiled, faded or substandard national flags and national emblems for
central handling by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR")
Government. PAS(CMA)7 added that while the public was encouraged to keep the
national flags and national emblems in good condition for reuse, in case people
wished to dispose of any national flags and national emblems kept by them, they
could make use of the designated collection points, and should never discard them
in a way which undermined their dignity.

Review of the Regional Flag and Regional Emblem Ordinance ("RFREQO")

15. Members queried why the Administration did not amend RFREO and NFNEO
in parallel to ensure that the enforcement standards of relevant offences were aligned
and avoid giving rise to disparities between the two ordinances. SCMA explained
that HKSAR had the constitutional responsibility to implement the amended
National Flag Law and the amended National Emblem Law locally by amending
NFNEO as soon as possible, therefore priority was accorded to this legislative
amendment exercise. That said, SCMA undertook that the Administration would
review the provisions of RFREO in a timely manner and propose amendments to
RFREO as necessary. At the request of the Bills Committee, SCMA agreed to
provide supplementary information in this connection.

(Post-meeting note: The supplementary information provided by the
Administration [LC Paper No. CB(4)1419/20-21(01)] was tabled at the
meeting on 3 September 2021 and was issued the members on the same day.)




Action

-7 -

Clause-bhy-clause examination of the Bill

16. The Bills Committee commenced clause-by-clause examination of the
Chinese text of the Bill. The Bills Committee completed scrutinizing clause 6 of
the Bill.

Invitation of public views

17. Members agreed that a general notice should be posted on the Legislative
Council's website to invite written submissions on the Bill.

1.  Any other business

18. Members agreed that the next meeting would be held on Friday, 3 September
2021, at 10:45 am.

19.  There being no other business, the meeting ended at 5:58 pm.

Council Business Division 4
Leqislative Council Secretariat
3 December 2021




Proceedings of the first meeting of the
Bills Committee on National Flag and National Emblem

(Amendment) Bill 2021

on Friday, 27 August 2021, at 4:00 pm

in Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex

Annex |

Time Speaker(s) Subiject(s) Action
Marker required
000349 - | Members Election of Chairman
000634
000635 - | Chairman Invitation of public views
000712 Members
000713 - | Chairman Opening speech of the Secretary for Constitutional
001303 Administration and Mainland Affairs on the National Flag and
National Emblem (Amendment) Bill 2021 (“the
Bill") (Chinese version only) (see Annex I1)
001304 - | Chairman Proposed amendments to sections4 and 7 of the
001907 Dr Priscilla LEUNG National Flag and National Emblem Ordinance
Administration ("NFNEO") and the proposed new section 4A of
NFNEO
001908 - | Chairman Definition of desecrating acts in relation to the
002554 Mr LUK Chung-hung national flag and national emblem under the
Administration proposed new section 7 of NFNEO; and training for
teachers in respect of national flag and national
emblem education
002555 - | Chairman The Administration's plan to review and amend the
003035 Mr Tony TSE Regional Flag and Regional Emblem Ordinance
Administration ("RFREO")

003036 - | Chairman National flag and national emblem education; the use
003607 Mr YIU Si-wing and display of the national flag; and the enforcement
Administration of the proposed new section 7 of NFNEO
003608 - | Chairman The use and display of the national flag; and review

004301 Mr Steven HO of RFREO

Administration
004302 - | Chairman Consequences of non-compliance with the directions
004727 Mr Christopher CHEUNG | to be given by the Secretary for Education ("SED")

Administration




Time Speaker(s) Subject(s) Action
Marker required
004728 - | Chairman The scope of prohibition on certain uses of the
005012 Mr LAU Kwok-fan national flag and national emblem under the Bill
Administration
005013 - | Chairman Scope of coverage of education on the national flag
005640 Ms YUNG Hoi-yan and national emblem
Administration
005641 - | Chairman Disparities between the provisions in NFNEO after | Admin. to
010304 Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok amended by the Bill and those in the existing RFREO | provide
Administration supplementary
information
(para. 15 of
minutes)
010305 - | Chairman Suggestion on enhancing the national security | Admin. to relay
010854 Mr KWOK Wai-keung education courses run by universities funded by the | Mr  KWOK's
Administration University Grants Committee view to relevant
universities for
consideration
(para. 13 of
minutes)
010855 - | Chairman The use, display, recovery and disposal of the
011254 Mr CHAN Han-pan national flag
Administration
011255 - | Chairman Ensuring schools' compliance with the directions to
011715 Mr Holden CHOW be given by SED for the inclusion of the national flag
Administration and national emblem in primary and secondary
education
011716 - | Chairman Review of RFREO and enforcement of the amended | Admin. to
012420 Mr Tony TSE NFNEO provide
Mr Steven HO supplementary
Administration information
(para. 8 of
minutes)

Clause-by-clause examination of the Bi

012421 -
012535

Chairman
Administration

Part 1 — Preliminary

Examination of clauses 1 and 2 of the Bill




Time Speaker(s) Subject(s) Action
Marker required
012536 - | Chairman Part 2 — Amendments to National Flag and
020140 Mr Tony TSE National Emblem Ordinance (116 of 1997)
Ms YUNG Hoi-yan
Mr Steven HO Examination of clauses 3 to 6 of the Bill
Mr LUK Chung-hung
Administration Clause 4
- Discussion of the proposed new Preamble
Clause 5
- Enquiries on matters relating to the stipulations
to be made by the Chief Executive and the
proposed amendment to section 3(4) of NFNEO
Clause 6
- Enquiries on the rationale of the proposed
amendments to section 4 of NFNEO
020141 - | Chairman Date of next meeting and closing remarks
020232 Members

Council Business Division 4
Legislative Council Secretariat

3 December 2021




D

B e N BB RS RAEILES (202 1FBIH R # (&
5]) ROIER) ZEGERERHSES (A0
s 3k 3k %k k ok %k ok sk sk sk ok ok ok ok ok sk sk k ok ok ok ko

D FREGH RS HEREYEESE (A
H) ETUAE QO2ERIRER (155T) MEEER) %8
FERGHOI 2L

m}[v

H
FH

SRBAEHE ~ BEERGERFEELE (20214
B R (25]) BREIEZR) ( (RBIEZR) ) AEZE
WERGH R EER S (BEBDE) o (EIgeL)
A8 WA = B PR A R A HE TR A -

B ~ EIEUIEL R B R AR EAIARSS - (AFRE B
FEEAIE R » STETEE TFAERVITIEI ~ i > B+ =
EHEARARRGEBZREGERF+ s 17 (%)
K (BlEGR) ABIEREE - DS BBISATEHIE - EardEE
BIERpZE N

(BIfE) K (BlfRUE) EFIA (EATE) W= I
EEBEHIE (B EIERGT) DI A A R AR
it - WK (BE) &k (Bgvk) NE > k2%

CEIERMRET) - BAHE/ N +/\H & ~ Shai st (e

BZ) > MR TSR B8R - IO WITVREE A
(BRPIEZ) BVESTT HEILEEBHEBZEE - A
LN ©

BRI S R (RPIFEZ) BIDEFRR - EI0EBHEET
AR AIEER AT - w2 2 e 0 AR R A IR A =M A
FYREAE ~ [ RIAIRS 1 - BIORRE B R B R IEHE(E A - 4iad
e8] FEEC o [ RO > o T E S B R e 8 - P R RV
HESNIGASZ R - [RIHRE iR & A e Y o R A R
J& o DA ERREM -

IRy (BUREER) A240R0:5C 0 1 (EIECR) AE19
RIRSZ bR T AN BN B AR ERAIFRSCN - HERRER T HIFR
XEBERMA (REEZE) -

EFRILEERL > (ROIEZR) o3 RVUEESY - HA181H
EETIRC - E5A = (EfSaT A -

F— o IIRERIH R BRI AR E - BRI A S BT
FETHE (AT B SPAVIGHEE ~ B R BB Bl B 5
T~ AN o P R R R RO

F o AT IR ~ BB FREE FRATIEI - PLR
SR LA S B S B SR TV RS » A RAg AR - B
CEQERIRGT) HUAHIERE —2L

O OI0
Annex 11



F= BB EEHIAE - GRS T
SRTTRERS > DURRF BRI R [ 185 A 5 e s B BR A
B H AR > (FHARE

gt (RBIRZE) RIS - RFIEEZRRERIG R
TEsFAIERR

FEIEHS > TSRS - IPIRVIDEHAVIERE I - 2
WVAER I FTA B A B S BB BB I Ty - BLFR{ER
FAESRAETa ERITT R - I > ETEIE ~ 8U8 R ARH
R BRI TR (BfRENR (REIER) WNATES [T
i3 ¥ RIRE RS - A E R ABIHAERIAE - WL
B EZEHTE PR AR TSR R (R R 8 - Wiie
PE(EZEATHARE(EHEOHR » NIE - PofMEELAgA [EHEZ A
55 0 SVam{E R E 0 & AR -

IEAEAE (FRETEZE) “sErvsd s et - (REI=
%) AIRARA R EZE A gE " HE ) > §H
BRI ~ BEIERFAMER REAIEET BRI 5 B -
?ﬂ?‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ@%@ﬁﬁé@%@%ﬁﬂ > IS TH ERARRE AL
£ -

Bl iR B3 (FRETEZE) AIBGTRetER - 3K
ISR AR R HEE (REPIEE) - BMTgehikex
BEHEERTIE -

LR

=

JG

202148 H27H (2HIT)
TR L T 18y



	bc11120210827cb4-1783-a-e.pdf
	Annex I




